### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

### **FORM PRER14C**

Preliminary revised information statements

Filing Date: **2007-12-10 SEC Accession No.** 0001144204-07-066553

(HTML Version on secdatabase.com)

### **FILER**

### Sputnik, Inc.

CIK:1326917| IRS No.: 522348956 | State of Incorp.:NV | Fiscal Year End: 1231

Type: PRER14C | Act: 34 | File No.: 000-52366 | Film No.: 071294032

SIC: 3576 Computer communications equipment

Mailing Address 650 5TH STREET SUITE 303

**Business Address** 650 5TH STREET SUITE 303 SAN FRANCISCO CA 94107 SAN FRANCISCO CA 94107 (415) 355-9500

#### SCHEDULE 14C

### INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

(RULE 14C-101)

Amendment No. 2

#### **SCHEDULE 14C INFORMATION**

Information Statement Pursuant to Section 14(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. )

Che	heck the appropriate box:		
$\boxtimes$	☑ Preliminary Information Statement		Confidential, for Use of the Commission
Onl	only (as permitted by Rule 14c-5(d)(2))		
	Definitive Information Statement		
		UTNIK ant as Sp	LINC. ecified In Its Charter)
		ot applic	able atement, if other than the Registrant)
Pay	ayment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):		
X	No fee required.		
	Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rule	s 14c-5(§	g) and 0-11.
(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction a	pplies: _	
(2)	2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction	applies: _	
(3) on v	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined to the control of	•	uted pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the amoun
\$	per share as determined under Rule 0-11(c)1 under the	Exchan	ge Act.
(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction: \$		
(5)	Total fee paid: \$		
	Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.		

	Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
(1)	Amount previously paid:
(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3)	Filing Party:
(4)	Date Filed:

#### SPUTNIK, INC.

650 5<sup>th</sup> Street, Suite 303 San Francisco, CA 94107

# INFORMATION STATEMENT WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY

December	, 2007
----------	--------

Dear Shareholder:

This information statement is being furnished to the shareholders of Sputnik, Inc. (the "Company" or "Sputnik") in lieu of a Special Meeting in connection with the proposals ("Proposals") below:

- The disposal of the Company's assets pursuant to the sale of the stock of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Laika, Inc. to AstroChimp, Inc., a Nevada corporation owned solely by David LaDuke, our President and Director in connection with implementation of the Company's current business plan to secure financing from sources who will only consider investment in the Company if the Company's business is no longer held in an entity that is an SEC reporting company and whose stock does not have a Ticker Symbol to trade on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets;
- Authorize an amendment to the Company's articles of incorporation to add 10,000,000 authorized shares of "blank check" preferred stock, \$.001 par value in addition to the 50,000,000 shares of common stock currently authorized; and
- Authorize the Board, in its discretion, to change the name of the Corporation to Sputnik Enterprises, Inc. concurrently with the sale of stock.

This information statement is being sent in lieu of a special meeting. Sputnik has adopted the Proposals discussed in this information statement by the written consent of stockholders holding a majority of the voting power of Sputnik's common stock. The Proposals have been made pursuant to Sputnik's business plan to secure financing from sources who will only consider investment in the Company if the Company's business is no longer held in an entity that is an SEC reporting company and whose stock does not have a Ticker Symbol to trade on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets. Sputnik's Board of Directors approved and recommended, on December 8, 2007, pursuant to a written consent dated December 8, 2007 that the Proposals be accepted. Sputnik's stockholders holding a majority of the voting power approved the Proposals, pursuant to a written consent on December 8, 2007. Sputnik anticipates that the sale of stock and filing of the amendments will occur on or about \*\*\* (the "Effective Date") to Sputnik shareholders of record on December 16, 2007. If the Proposals were not adopted by written consent, the Proposals would have been required to be considered by Sputnik's stockholders at a special or annual stockholders' meeting convened for the specific purpose of approving the Proposals.

The elimination of the need for a special or annual meeting of stockholders to ratify or approve the Proposals is authorized by the Nevada Revised Statutes (the "NRS") and Sputnik's bylaws, which provide that the written consent of stockholders holding at least a majority of the voting power may be substituted for such a special or annual meeting. In order to eliminate the costs and management time involved in holding a special or annual meeting and in order to effect or ratify the Proposals as early as possible in order to accomplish the purposes of Sputnik, the Board of Directors of Sputnik voted to utilize the written consent of stockholders holding a majority of the voting power of Sputnik.

The sale of stock was approved by Arthur Tyde, Director, David LaDuke abstaining, on December 8, 2007. David LaDuke, president and director, and Arthur Tyde, director beneficially own 9,000,000 shares of common stock, representing approximately 61% of the voting power of Sputnik, gave their written consent to the Proposals described in this information statement on December 8, 2007. It is proposed that this information statement will be first sent to the stockholders on or about December \*\*, 2007. The record date established by Sputnik for purposes of determining the number of outstanding shares of common stock, and thus the voting power, is December 16, 2007 (the "Record Date").

Sputnik is distributing this information statement to its stockholders in full satisfaction of any notice requirements it may have under the NRS. No additional action will be undertaken by Sputnik with respect to the receipt of the written consents.

SHAREHOLDERS OF SPUTNIK ARE ENTITLED TO DISSENT FROM THE SALE OF STOCK (SALE OF ASSETS) DISCUSSED IN THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT AND OBTAIN PAYMENT OF THE FAIR VALUE OF THEIR SHARES IF AND WHEN THE PROPOSALS ARE EFFECTUATED. SHAREHOLDERS DESIRING TO EXERCISE THEIR APPRAISAL RIGHTS MUST COMPLY WITH SPECIFIC PROVISIONS OF THE NRS, WHICH ARE INCLUDED IN THE APPENDIX HERETO.

Sincerely,

David LaDuke

David LaDuke

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY TERM SHEET	4
Material Advantages and Disadvantages of the Sale of stock	4
Related Parties	5
Voting on the Proposals	6
Dissenters' Rights	6
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SALE OF STOCK AND AMENDMENTS TO OUR ARTICLES	
OF INCORPORATION	7
MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK	11
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION	12
THE INFORMATION STATEMENT	13
Outstanding Voting Stock of the Company	14
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	14
PROPOSAL ONE - DISTRIBUTION	15
PROPOSAL TWO - AUTHORIZATION OF PREFERRED STOCK	20
PROPOSAL THREE - NAME CHANGE	21
FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES	
RIGHTS OF DISSENTING SHAREHOLDERS	22
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	24
Board Approval	24
Appendix A - Articles of Amendment	25
Appendix B - Dissenters rights (Nevada statutes)	27
2	

#### SUMMARY TERM SHEET

#### FOR THE SPUTNIK SALE OF STOCK

The following summary term sheet for the sale of stock, together with "Summary: Questions and Answers About the Proposals" appearing elsewhere in this information statement highlight selected information from this information statement and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. We urge you to carefully read this entire document and the other documents that we refer to in this document. These documents will give you a more complete description of the sale of stock and proposed amendments to our Articles of Incorporation. We have included page references in this summary to direct you to other places in this information statement where you can find a more complete description of the documents and terms that we have summarized.

<u>Sale of stock.</u> In connection with the implementation of the Company's current business plan, the stock of the Company's subsidiary, Laika, Inc., will be sold to AstroChimp, Inc., a Nevada corporation owned solely by David LaDuke, our president and director (sometimes referred to as the "sale of stock"). The sale of stock is expected to be completed on \*\*\*.

After the sale of stock, Laika will continue to own and operate its business as before the sale of stock and will continue its business plan. The Company intends to seek the consummation of a reverse merger with another operating company but will have no active operations until such reverse merger is finalized. After the sale of stock, the Company will not own any interest in the assets or operations of Laika. After the sale of stock, the stockholders of the Company as of December 16, 2007 will continue to own their shares of Common Stock of the Company. See "Proposal One -Distribution" on page 11.

#### Material Advantages and Disadvantages of the Sale of stock

#### Advantages:

- The Company believes its future potential to obtain financing necessary to implement our business plan is dependent upon securing financing from sources who will only consider investment in the Company if the Company's business is no longer held in an entity that is an SEC reporting company and whose stock does not have a Ticker Symbol to trade on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets.
- You will maintain your equity interest in Sputnik and be given the opportunity to own the same percentage interest in AstroChimp, which will own all the stock of Laika, Inc., through the filing of a registration statement by AstroChimp of a rights offering to current shareholders of Sputnik other than David LaDuke giving them the opportunity to purchase the same number of shares of common stock of AstroChimp as they currently own in Sputnik for consideration not to exceed par value of \$.001 or such lesser amount as permitted under Nevada law, such registration statement to be filed no later than 120 days following the closing of the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp.

#### Disadvantages:

- As a recently private entity, Laika, Inc. may not be able to secure financing required to fund the development of its business.
- You will have to pay something more to acquire the stock of AstroChimp. AstroChimp will set the price as low as possible, but may be required to sell the stock for \$.001 per share.
- Your stock in Laika would have been registered and thus free trading. The rights offering of Astrochimp will require you agree not to sell your stock for a period of two years.

#### **Related Parties**

David LaDuke, president and director of Sputnik owns 15,000,000 shares of AstroChimp, Inc., which is all of the issued and outstanding stock of AstroChimp.

Although the transaction is between related parties, it is undertaken consistent with the following provisions of Nevada law concerning related party transactions, as follows:

#### Combinations With Interested Stockholders

Nevada law governs combinations with interested stockholders. The sale of stock of Laika to AstroChimp is subject to this law because a sale of stock is considered a combination under the statute. Unless exempt from this provision of Nevada law, the sale of stock to AstroChip could not be consummated. The AstroChimp purchase of stock is exempt from this provision of Nevada law in that

It only applies to a resident domestic corporation.

NRS 78.427 "Resident domestic corporation" defined.

2. "Resident domestic corporation" is limited to a domestic corporation that has 200 or more stockholders of record.

Sputnik has less than 200 shareholders of Record and thus is not a resident domestic corporation and the statute does not apply.

• Even if Sputnik were a resident domestic corporation, the statute wouldn't apply.

NRS 78.433 Applicability: Generally. NRS 78.411 to 78.444, inclusive, do not apply to any combination of a resident domestic corporation:

1. Which does not, as of the date that the person first becomes an interested stockholder, have a class of voting shares registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act, unless the corporation's articles of incorporation provide otherwise.

Mr. LaDuke acquired his shares in Sputnik upon formation of Sputnik, well before Sputnik had a class of securities registered under section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act and thus these provisions of Nevada law don't apply.

Restrictions On Transactions Involving Interested Directors Or Officers

NRS 78.140 governs restrictions on transactions involving interested directors or officers such as the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp.

Under this statute, the sale of stock of Laika is not prohibited if one of the circumstances specified in subsection 2 exists.

- 2. The circumstances in which a contract or other transaction is not void or voidable pursuant to subsection 1 are:
- (b) The fact of the common directorship, office or financial interest is known to the stockholders, and they approve or ratify the contract or transaction in good faith by a majority vote of stockholders holding a majority of the voting power. The votes of the common or interested directors or officers must be counted in any such vote of stockholders.

This condition was satisfied. The proposals were approved by the written consent of shareholders owning a majority of the outstanding common stock of Sputnik. The proposals were approved by David LaDuke and Arthur Tyde who owned approximately 61% of the outstanding shares of Sputnik.

(d) The contract or transaction is fair as to the corporation at the time it is authorized or approved.

This condition was satisfied. The transaction is structured to give all shareholders the opportunity for de minimus consideration to maintain their current ownership interest in Sputnik by acquiring stock in Astrochimp in a right offering by Astrochimp to current shareholders of Spuntink other than David LaDuke to be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the date of the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp. The transaction is not undertaken to enrich Mr. LaDuke but rather to protect current shareholders of Sputnik. Sputnik's liabilities currently exceed its assets. Sputnik has explored all other transaction structures which will allow the company to implement its business plan and avoid ceasing operations and has determined that no other viable alternative exists.

#### Voting on the Proposals

The proposals were approved by the written consent of shareholders owning a majority of the outstanding common stock of Sputnik. This information statement is being sent for notice purposes only. The proposals were approved by David LaDuke and Arthur Tyde who owned approximately 61% of the outstanding shares of Sputnik.

### **Dissenters' Rights**

Our shareholders are entitled to dissenters' rights under Nevada law as the rights pertain to the sale of stock, which constitutes a disposal of all of the assets of the Company. You are urged to read the discussion of dissenters' rights commencing on page \*\*\* and applicable Nevada law attached as Appendix B to this information statement.

## QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SALE OF STOCK AND AMENDMENTS TO OUR ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The following is a summary of certain information contained elsewhere in this information statement. The following summary is not intended to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the more detailed information contained in this information statement and in the attached Appendices. You are urged to review the entire information statement carefully. References in this Summary and throughout the information statement to "we," "us," "Sputnik" or the "Company" refer to Sputnik, Inc.

#### O: WHY ARE WE SENDING OUR SHAREHOLDERS THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT?

- A: Sputnik is mailing this information statement in lieu of a special meeting to notify its shareholders that the following proposals have been adopted by majority written consent:
- The disposal of the Company's assets pursuant to the sale of the stock of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Laika, Inc. to AstroChimp, Inc., a Nevada corporation owned solely by David LaDuke, our President and Director in connection with implementation of the Company's current business plan to secure financing from sources who will only consider investment in the Company if the Company's business is no longer held in an entity that is an SEC reporting company and whose stock does not have a Ticker Symbol to trade on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets;
- Authorize an amendment to the Company's articles of incorporation to add 10,000,000 authorized shares of "blank check"
   preferred stock, \$.001 par value in addition to the 50,000,000 shares of common stock currently authorized; and
- Authorize the Board, in its discretion, to change the name of the Corporation to Sputnik Enterprises, Inc. concurrently with the sale of stock.

Approval of the distribution and the amendments to our articles of incorporation required the affirmative vote of at least a majority of all issued and outstanding shares of Sputnik common stock.

#### O: WHY IS SPUTNIK PROPOSING THE SALE OF STOCK OF LAIKA TO ASTROCHIMP?

- A: Sputnik is proposing the sale of stock of Laika to AstroChimp for several reasons:
- (1) The Company needs additional capital to implement its business plan. Management had initially believed that it would have a better opportunity to obtain such capital as a public company. However, after becoming a public company and exploring financing alternatives, management determined that it was unable to raise sufficient capital as a public company and that the Company's prospects of raising capital appear to be better by being a private company rather than a public company. The sale of stock of Laika to Astrochimp makes Laika a private company and further a company without a Ticker Symbol and thus not readily capable of Pink Sheet trading; and
- (2) Management determined that additional capital could be raised by transforming itself into a public shell, having management sell a controlling interest in the public shell, and management agreeing to invest all proceeds of the sale of such controlling interest into Laika, after payment of all personal tax liabilities and out-of-pocket expenses as a result of such sale, and management has agreed to do so.

Although management has held preliminary discussions with third parties concerning such transactions, it has not entered into any non-binding arrangement such as a letter of intent or into any binding commitment, agreement or understanding with a third party concerning funding or sale of controlling interest after the sale of stock.

There can be no assurance that the sale of stock will have any of the desired consequences described above.

# Q: DID SPUTNIK CONSIDER OTHER ALTERNATIVES TO IMPLEMENT ITS BUSINESS PLAN, SUCH AS THE FILING OF A FORM 15 TO CEASE REPORTING OBLIGATIONS OR A SPIN-OFF OF LAIKA?

#### Form 15

The filing of a Form 15 was considered and rejected as it would not allow the Company to implement the primary purpose of the transaction: To facilitate financing opportunities by transforming the business of the Company into a private entity.

The a Form 15 filing would still leave current Sputnik shareholders with free trading stock and trading could still occur on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets - thereby defeating the business purpose of the transaction.

In this case, after the sale of Laika stock to AstroChimp, there will be no stock available for trading on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets. As one of the terms of the rights offering by Astrochimp will be that the purchaser agree not to resell the securities for a period of two years, and thus even this offering will not create free trading securities. This would not be the result if the Company choose to file a Form 15.

Further, the Company believes that all current shareholders' rights are actually better protected under this format in which dissenters have dissenters' rights to protect their interest under this format but would have no such rights with the filing of a Form 15.

#### Spin-Off

It was Sputnik's desire to effect the transaction as a spin-off. However, Sputnik was advised by the SEC staff during its review of a premilinary Schedule 14C for a spin-off that due to the requirements of Staff Legal Bulletin 4, such a spin off would have required Laika to file a registration statement which the staff would treat as an IPO and give full review.

For Sputnik, time is of the essence. Its very existence is threatened. There was a significant risk that by the time the staff completed their review of such a registration statement, allowing Sputnik to move forward with the spin off and commence implementation of its business plan, Sputnik and Laika would have ceased operations and shareholders would have lost their entire investment in Sputnik before Sputnik could have commenced implementing its business plan.

The transaction as currently structured eliminates this risk as it will be Astrochimp and not Laika filing a registration statement. Laika, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Astrochimp, a private company, rather than Sputnik, as public company, will not be subject to the provisions of the Exchange Act, will be a private company and will not have stock available for trading on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets - thereby accomplishing Sputnik's business objectives. This would not have been the case if Laika remained a subsidiary of Sputnik, a public company.

# Q: WHY IS SPUTNIK PROPOSING THE AMENDMENT TO ITS ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION TO ALLOW THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN THE FUTURE, TO ISSUE "BLANK CHECK" PREFERRED STOCK?

A: The amendment would provide the Company with increased financial flexibility in meeting future capital requirements. The amendment makes preferred stock available for issuance from time to time and with such features as determined by the Board for any proper corporate purpose. It is anticipated that such purposes may include exchanging preferred stock for Common Stock and, without limitation, may include the issuance for cash as a means of obtaining capital for use by the Company, or issuance as part or all of the consideration required to be paid by the Company for acquisitions of other businesses or assets. It is anticipated that any person interested in purchasing a controlling interest in the Company following the sale of stock, thereby providing additional funding to the

	8		

# Q: WHY IS SPUTNIK PROPOSING THE AMENDMENTS TO ITS ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION TO ALLOW THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO IMPLEMENT A CHANGE THE NAME OF THE COMPANY?

A: The purpose of authorizing the Board of Directors to implement a future name change is to allow Laika to reclaim its name as Sputnik, Inc..

## Q. WILL I BE IN EXACTLY THE SAME POSITION UNDER THE CURRENT TRANSACTION STRUCTURE AS I WOULD HAVE BEEN IF THE TRANSACTION WERE STRUCTURED AS A SPIN OFF?

- A: No. Although you will have the chance to own the same number of shares and percentage of AstroChimp, Laika's parent, as you currently own in Sputnik:
  - You will have to pay something more to acquire the stock of AstroChimp. AstroChimp will set the price as low as possible, but may be required to sell the stock for \$.001 per share.
  - Your stock in Laika would have been registered and thus free trading. The rights offering of Astrochimp will require you agree not to sell your stock for a period of two years.

#### Q. WHAT WILL HAPPEN TO PRESENT MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT?

A: Members of the Company management hold a portion of the Company's shares. They, like you, will also receive one share of Laika, Inc. stock for each share of the Company stock they own as of the effective time of the sale of stock. David LaDuke will continue as a member of the Company's Board of Directors. Mr. Tyde will resign as a member of Sputnik's Board. Members of Sputnik's management will continue as officers, directors and employees of Laika, Inc. after the sale of stock and sale of Laika, Inc. stock.

It is anticipated that Mr. LaDuke and Mr. Tyde will be replaced if and when they sell their controlling interest in the Company.

#### Q. WHAT WILL HAPPEN TO LAIKA, INC. AND ITS PRODUCTS?

A: The development of Laika, Inc.'s products and services will continue.

# Q: WHAT ARE THE RISKS AND DISADVANTAGES OF THE PROPOSALS TO SPUTNIK AND OUR CURRENT SHAREHOLDERS?

- A: There are certain risks and disadvantages to the sale of stock. These risks and disadvantages include:
  - Laika may not secure financing after the sale of stock.
  - The value of your shares in Sputnik, which will become a shell company, will be substantially decreased or eliminated.
  - Your equity position in AstroChimp may require the payment of additional consideration and will be restricted and not available for resale.
  - If AstroChimp does not file a registration statement or if this registration statement is not declared effective, you will not have any future ownership in Sputnik's current operational business, Laika.

#### Q: IS REGULATORY APPROVAL REQUIRED?

A: Sputnik believes that no regulatory approvals are or will be required in connection with the implementation of the sale of stock.

# Q: WILL SPUTNIK'S COMMON STOCK CONTINUE TO BE QUOTED ON THE OVER THE COUNTER BULLETIN BOARD (OTCBB)?

A: Currently, our common stock is quoted on the OTC BB. The completion of the distribution and other proposals should have no effect on the quotation of our common stock on the OTC BB.

#### Q: WHEN WILL THE SALE OF LAIKA STOCK OCCUR?

A: We plan to complete the sale of stock and other proposals 20 days after the mailing of this information statement.

#### Q: ARE DISSENTERS' RIGHTS AVAILABLE AND HOW DO I EXERCISE THEM?

A: Yes, Nevada law provides that you may dissent from the disposal of assets. In order to perfect your dissenter's rights, you must first notify Sputnik prior to the Effective Date in writing. Sputnik will then notify you that you are entitled to demand payment for your shares and instruct you of the necessary steps in order to obtain such payment. If you do not comply with the procedures governing dissenters' rights set forth under Nevada law and explained elsewhere in this information statement, you may not be entitled to payment for your shares. You are urged to review the section of this information statement entitled "Rights of Dissenting Shareholders" and Appendix B for a more complete discussion of dissenters' rights.

#### Q: WHAT DO I NEED TO DO NOW?

A: This information statement contains important information regarding the sale of assets and amendments to our articles of incorporation. We urge you to read this information statement carefully, including the appendices, and to consider how the distribution and articles of amendment affect you as a shareholder.

#### Q: DO I VOTE?

A: No. We are not asking you for a proxy. This information statement is being sent in satisfaction of notice requirements.

#### Q: WHO CAN HELP ANSWER MY QUESTIONS?

A: If you have any questions regarding the matters discussed in this information statement or if you would like additional copies of this information statement, you should call David LaDuke, at Sputnik's corporate offices at 415-355-9500.

#### MARKET FOR COMMON STOCK

Sputnik's common stock is currently quoted on the OTC BB under the symbol "SPUT." Sputnik's common stock commenced quotation on the OTC BB on August 13, 2007. The stock is thinly traded and transactions in the stock are infrequent and sporadic. No established trading market exists for Sputnik's common stock.

The closing sale quotation per share of Sputnik's common stock, as reported on the OTC BB on December 8, 2007 was \$0.16.

The following table sets forth the high and low bid quotations for Sputnik's common stock for the periods indicated. These quotations, as reported by the OTC BB, reflect prices between dealers, do not include retail mark-ups, markdowns, or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Period		High	Low
Quarter ended September 30, 2007		\$0.65	\$0.37
Current Quarter, to end December 31, 2007		\$0.40	\$0.16
	11		

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This information statement contains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, future performance and business of Sputnik. Such statements consist of any statement other than a recitation of historical fact and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as "may," "expect," "anticipate," "estimate" or "continue" or use of negative or other variations or comparable terminology. Because such statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ materially from historical results and those presently anticipated or projected. Sputnik's shareholders are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Among the factors that could cause actual results in the future to differ materially from any opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods. Sputnik undertakes no obligation to release publicly any revisions to such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

#### THE INFORMATION STATEMENT

#### General

This information statement is being furnished to shareholders of Sputnik in lieu of a special meeting of shareholders in connection with the following Proposals:

- The disposal of the Company's assets pursuant to the sale of the stock of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Laika, Inc. to AstroChimp, Inc., a Nevada corporation owned solely by David LaDuke, our President and Director in connection with implementation of the Company's current business plan to secure financing from sources who will only consider investment in the Company if the Company's business is no longer held in an entity that is an SEC reporting company and whose stock does not have a Ticker Symbol to trade on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets;
- Authorize an amendment to the Company's articles of incorporation to add 10,000,000 authorized shares of "blank check" preferred stock, \$.001 par value in addition to the 50,000,000 shares of common stock currently authorized; and
- Authorize the Board, in its discretion, to change the name of the Corporation to Sputnik Enterprises, Inc. concurrently with the sale of stock.

This information statement is being sent in lieu of a special meeting. Sputnik has adopted the Proposals discussed in this information statement by the written consent of stockholders holding a majority of the voting power of Sputnik's common stock. The Proposals have been made pursuant to Sputnik's business plan to secure financing from sources who will only consider investment in the Company if the Company's business is no longer held in an entity that is an SEC reporting company and whose stock does not have a Ticker Symbol to trade on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets. Sputnik's Board of Directors approved and recommended, on December 8, 2007, pursuant to a written consent dated December 8, 2007 that the Proposals be accepted, David LaDuke abstaining from a vote on Proposal 1. Sputnik's stockholders holding a majority of the voting power approved the Proposals, pursuant to a written consent on December 8, 2007. Sputnik anticipates that the sale of stock and filing of the amendments will occur on or about \*\*\* (the "Effective Date") to Sputnik shareholders of record on December 16, 2007. If the Proposals were not adopted by written consent, the Proposals would have been required to be considered by Sputnik's stockholders at a special or annual stockholders' meeting convened for the specific purpose of approving the Proposals.

The elimination of the need for a special or annual meeting of stockholders to ratify or approve the Proposals is authorized by the Nevada Revised Statutes (the "NRS") and Sputnik's bylaws, which provide that the written consent of stockholders holding at least a majority of the voting power may be substituted for such a special or annual meeting. In order to eliminate the costs and management time involved in holding a special or annual meeting and in order to effect or ratify the Proposals as early as possible in order to accomplish the purposes of Sputnik, the Board of Directors of Sputnik voted to utilize the written consent of stockholders holding a majority of the voting power of the Sputnik.

David LaDuke, president and director, and Arthur Tyde, director beneficially own 9,000,000 shares of common stock, representing approximately 61% of the voting power of Sputnik, gave their written consent to the Proposals described in this information statement on December 8, 2007. It is proposed that this information statement will be first sent to the stockholders on or about December \*\*\*, 2007. The record date established by Sputnik for purposes of determining the number of outstanding shares of common stock, and thus the voting power, is December 16, 2007 (the "Record Date").

SHAREHOLDERS OF SPUTNIK ARE ENTITLED TO DISSENT FROM THE SALE OF ASSETS DISCUSSED IN THIS INFORMATION STATEMENT AND OBTAIN PAYMENT OF THE FAIR VALUE OF THEIR SHARES IF AND WHEN THE

	13		

PROPOSALS ARE EFFECTUATED. SHAREHOLDERS DESIRING TO EXERCISE THEIR APPRAISAL RIGHTS MUST

#### **OUTSTANDING VOTING STOCK OF THE COMPANY**

As of the Record Date, there were 14,763,919 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding. The Common Stock constitutes the outstanding class of voting securities of the Company. Each share of Common Stock entitles the holder to one (1) vote on all matters submitted to the stockholders.

No director of the Company has informed the registrant in writing that he intends to oppose any action to be taken by the Company. No proposals have been received from security holders.

#### SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The table below indicates the security ownership of officers, directors and beneficial owners as of the date of this information statement. Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each person listed is 650 5<sup>th</sup> Street, Suite 303, San Francisco, CA 94107.

	Number of		
	Shares		
	of Common		
	Stock		
	Beneficially	Ownership Percentage	
Name of Beneficial Owner	Owned		
David LaDuke, president, officer and director	8,000,000	54.2	%
Arthur Tyde, director	1,000,000	6.8	%
Kathy Giori			
1060 Vernier Place			
Stanford, CA 94305	1,250,000	8.5	%
Scott Hutton			
423 Dell Avenue			
Mountain View, CA 94035	1,000,000	6.8	%
All executive officers and			
directors as a group (2 persons)	9,000,000	60.96	%

#### PROPOSAL ONE - Disposal of all or substantially all of Sputnik assets

The following discussion summarizes the material terms of the distribution, which constitutes a proposal to dispose of all or substantially all of Sputnik assets.

#### General

The stock of the Company's wholly owned subsidiary Laika, Inc. will be sold to AstroChimp, Inc., a Nevada corporation wholly-owned by David LaDuke, our President and Director.

#### Sale of Stock of Laika to AstroChimp

The Agreement concerning the Sale of Stock of Laika, Inc. to AstroChimp, Inc. provides for the following:

- 1. Sputnik will sell all 15,000,000 shares of Laika it owns to AstroChimp, Inc. for total cash consideration of \$5,000.
- AstroChimp agrees to the filing of a registration statement by AstroChimp of a rights offering to current shareholders of Sputnik other than David LaDuke giving them the opportunity to purchase the same number of shares of common stock of AstroChimp as they currently own in Sputnik for consideration not to exceed par value of \$.001 or such lesser amount as permitted under Nevada law, such registration statement to be filed no later than 120 days following the closing of the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp. No shareholder of Sputnik may purchase stock in this offering unless they agree not to resell
- Laika stock to Astrochimp. No shareholder of Sputnik may purchase stock in this offering unless they agree not to resell securities acquired for a period of two years.

The Stock Purchase Agreement is attached as Appendix C to this Information Statement.

#### Reasons for Sale of Stock

Sputnik is proposing the sale of stock of Laika to AstroChimp for several reasons:

- (1) The Company needs additional capital to implement its business plan. Management had initially believed that it would have a better opportunity to obtain such capital as a public company. However, after becoming a public company and exploring financing alternatives, management determined that it was unable to raise sufficient capital as a public company and that the Company's prospects of raising capital appear to be better by being a private company rather than a public company. The sale of stock of Laika to Astrochimp makes Laika a private company not subject to the provisions of the Exchange Act and further a company without a Ticker Symbol and without free trading stock and thus not capable of OTCBB or Pink Sheet trading; and
- (2) Management determined that additional capital could be raised by transforming itself into a public shell, having management sell a controlling interest in the public shell, and management agreeing to invest all proceeds of the sale of such controlling interest into Laika, after payment of all personal tax liabilities and out-of-pocket expenses related to such a sale as a result of such sale, and management has agreed to do so.

Although management has held preliminary discussions with third parties concerning such transactions, it has not entered into any non-binding arrangement such as a letter of intent or into any binding commitment, agreement or understanding with a third party concerning funding or sale of controlling interest after the sale of stock.

There can be no assurance that the sale of stock will have any of the desired consequences described above.

#### Other Alternatives to a Sale of stock

#### Form 15

The filing of a Form 15 was considered and rejected as it would not allow the Company to implement the primary purpose of the transaction: To facilitate financing opportunities by transforming the business of the Company into a private entity.

The a Form 15 filing would still leave current Sputnik shareholders with free trading stock and trading could still occur on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets - thereby defeating the business purpose of the transaction.

In this case, after the sale of Laika stock to AstroChimp, there will be no stock available for trading on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets. As one of the terms of the rights offering by Astrochimp will be that the purchaser agree not to resell the securities for a period of two years, and thus even this offering will not create free trading securities. This would not be the result if the Company choose to file a Form 15.

Further, the Company believes that all current shareholders' rights are actually better protected under this format in which dissenters have dissenters' rights to protect their interest under this format but would have no such rights with the filing of a Form 15.

#### Spin-Off

It was Sputnik's desire to effect the transaction as a spin-off. However, Sputnik was advised by the SEC staff during its review of a preliminary Schedule 14C for a spin-off that due to the requirements of Staff Legal Bulletin 4, such a spin off would have required Laika to file a registration statement which the staff would treat as an IPO and give full review.

For Sputnik, time is of the essence. Its very existence is threatened. There was a significant risk that by the time the staff completed their review of such a registration statement, allowing Sputnik to move forward with the spin off and commence implementation of its business plan, Sputnik and Laika would have ceased operations and shareholders would have lost their entire investment in Sputnik before Sputnik could have commenced implementing its business plan.

The transaction as currently structured eliminates this risk as it will be Astrochimp and not Laika filing a registration statement. Laika, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Astrochimp, a private company, rather than Sputnik, as public company, will not be subject to the provisions of the Exchange Act, will be a private company and will not have stock available for trading on the OTCBB or the Pink Sheets - thereby accomplishing Sputnik's business objectives. This would not have been the case if Laika remained a subsidiary of Sputnik, a public company.

#### Nevada Law concerning Related Party Transactions

Although the sale of stock of Laika to AstroChimp is between related parties, as Mr. LaDuke is the majority shareholder, officer and director of both corporations, the transaction fully complies with all relevant provisions of Nevada law concerning related party transactions, as follows:

#### Combinations With Interested Stockholders

Nevada law has provisions governing combinations with interested stockholders. Under Nevada law, the sale of the stock of Laika to AstroChimp would be prohibited. Thus, unless exempt from this provision of Nevada law, the sale of stock to AstroChip could not be consummated.

The AstroChimp purchase of Laika stock is exempt from these provisions of Nevada Law in that

• The law only applies to a resident domestic corporation.

NRS 78.427 "Resident domestic corporation" defined.

3. "Resident domestic corporation" is limited to a domestic corporation that has 200 or more stockholders of record.

Sputnik has less than 200 shareholders of Record and thus is not a resident domestic corporation and the statute does not apply.

• Even if Sputnik were a resident domestic corporation, the statute wouldn't apply.

NRS 78.433 Applicability: Generally. NRS 78.411 to 78.444, inclusive, do not apply to any combination of a resident domestic corporation:

1. Which does not, as of the date that the person first becomes an interested stockholder, have a class of voting shares registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act, unless the corporation's articles of incorporation provide otherwise.

Mr. LaDuke acquired his shares in Sputnik upon formation of Sputnik, well before Sputnik had a class of securities registered under section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act and thus these provisions of Nevada law don't apply.

#### Restrictions On Transactions Involving Interested Directors Or Officers

NRS 78.140 governs restrictions on transactions involving interested directors or officers such as the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp.

Under this statute, the sale of stock of Laika is not prohibited if one of the circumstances specified in subsection 2 exists. These provisions of Nevada law provide:

- 2. The circumstances in which a contract or other transaction is not void or voidable pursuant to subsection 1 are:
- (b) The fact of the common directorship, office or financial interest is known to the stockholders, and they approve or ratify the contract or transaction in good faith by a majority vote of stockholders holding a majority of the voting power. The votes of the common or interested directors or officers must be counted in any such vote of stockholders.

This condition was satisfied. The proposals were approved by the written consent of shareholders owning a majority of the outstanding common stock of Sputnik. The proposals were approved by David LaDuke and Arthur Tyde who owned approximately 61% of the outstanding shares of Sputnik.

(d) The contract or transaction is fair as to the corporation at the time it is authorized or approved.

This condition was satisfied. The transaction is structured to give all shareholders the opportunity for de minimus consideration to maintain their current ownership interest in Sputnik by acquiring stock in Astrochimp in a right offering by Astrochimp to current shareholders of Spuntink other than David LaDuke to be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the date of the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp. The transaction is not undertaken to enrich Mr. LaDuke but rather to protect current shareholders of Sputnik. Sputnik's liabilities currently exceed its assets. Sputnik has explored all other transaction structures which will allow the company to implement its business plan and avoid ceasing operations and has determined that no other viable alternative exists.

#### Management of Laika Following Sale of Stock

David LaDuke and Arthur Tyde will serve as Board Members and Officers of Laika upon sale of stock. All expenses of the sale of stock will be borne by Sputnik.

#### Management of AstroChimp Following Sale of Stock

David LaDuke will be the sole officer and director of AstroChimp following sale of stock. All expenses of the sale of stock will be borne by Sputnik.

#### **Rights of Dissenting Shareholders**

The sale of stock constitutes a sale of substantially all of the assets of the Company, which is a corporate action which gives rise to dissenters' rights under the NRS. A summary and discussion of dissenters' rights available to Sputnik shareholders is set forth in this information statement under the heading "Rights of Dissenting Shareholders." Dissenters' rights under the NRS are attached to this information statement as Appendix B.

#### **Interests of Directors**

In considering the sale of assets, you should be aware that David LaDuke, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Director, currently owns 9,000,000 shares of Sputnik and Arthur Tyde, our Director, owns 1,000,000 shares.

#### **Regulatory Approval**

Sputnik believes that no regulatory approvals are or will be required in connection with the sale of stock.

#### PROPOSAL TWO - AUTHORIZATION OF PREFERRED STOCK

The Company currently has no authorized preferred stock. The Board believes that the authorization of the preferred shares would provide a purchaser of controlling interest in the Company greater flexibility with respect to the Company's capital structure for such purposes as additional equity financings and stock based acquisitions.

#### Resolution

**BE IT RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT** the Articles of Incorporation of Sputnik, Inc. (the "Corporation") be amended, and all such further and other steps necessary or desirable under the laws of Nevada be taken in order to add the following amendment to the third paragraph of the Articles of Incorporation:

In addition to the 50,000,000 shares of Common Stock, the aggregate number of shares which this Corporation will have authority to issue is an additional 10,000,000 shares which will be designated "Preferred Stock".

The shares of Preferred Stock may be issued in series, and shall have such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such designations, preferences and relative participating, optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such stock adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is hereby expressly vested with the authority to determine and fix in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuances of Preferred Stock the voting powers, designations, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restric-tions thereof, of each such series to the full extent now or hereafter permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada.

Any officer, director or agent of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute and deliver all such documents and to do all such acts and things as he or she may determine to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing provisions of this special resolution, the execution of any such document or the doing of any such acts and things being conclusive evidence of such determination. Such amendment shall be effective on such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

#### Preferred Stock

The term "blank check" refers to preferred stock, the creation and issuance of which is authorized in advance by the stockholders and the terms, rights and features of which are determined by the Board upon issuance. The authorization of such blank check preferred stock would permit the Board to authorize and issue preferred stock from time to time in one or more series.

Subject to the provisions of the Company's Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation and the limitations prescribed by law, the Board would be expressly authorized, at its discretion, to adopt resolutions to issue shares, to fix the number of shares and to change the number of shares constituting any series and to provide for or change the voting powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, including dividend rights (including whether the dividends are cumulative), dividend rates, terms of redemption (including sinking fund provisions), redemption prices, conversion rights and liquidation preferences of the shares constituting any series of the preferred stock, in each case without any further action or vote by the stockholders. The Board would be required to make any determination to issue shares of preferred stock based on its judgment as to the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. The amendment to the Articles of Incorporation would give the Board flexibility, without further stockholder action, to issue preferred stock on such terms and conditions as the Board deems to be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

The amendment would provide the Company with increased financial flexibility in meeting future capital requirements by providing another type of security in addition to its Common Stock, as it will allow preferred stock to be available for issuance from time to time and with such features as determined by the Board for any proper corporate purpose. It is anticipated that such purposes may include exchanging preferred stock for Common Stock and, without limitation, may include the issuance for cash as a means of obtaining capital for use by the Company, or issuance as part or all of the consideration required to be paid by the Company for acquisitions of other businesses or assets.

Any issuance of preferred stock with voting rights could, under certain circumstances, have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company by increasing the number of outstanding shares entitled to vote and by increasing the number of votes required to approve a change in control of the Company. Shares of voting or convertible preferred stock could be issued, or rights to purchase such shares could be issued, to render more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of the Company by means of a tender offer, proxy contest, merger or otherwise. The ability of the Board to issue such additional shares of preferred stock, with the rights and preferences it deems advisable, could discourage an attempt by a party to acquire control of the Company by tender offer or other means. Such issuances could therefore deprive stockholders of benefits that could result from such an attempt, such as the realization of a premium over the market price that such an attempt could cause. Moreover, the issuance of such additional shares of preferred stock to persons friendly to the Board could make it more difficult to remove incumbent managers and directors from office even if such change were to be favorable to stockholders generally.

Although the amendment may have anti-takeover ramifications, the Board believes that the financial flexibility offered by the amendment outweighs any disadvantages. To the extent that the amendment may have anti-takeover effects, the amendment may encourage persons seeking to acquire the Company to negotiate directly with the Board enabling the Board to consider the proposed transaction in a manner that best serves the stockholders' interests.

The Company has no present plans, arrangements, commitments or understandings for the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock.

#### PROPOSAL THREE - NAME CHANGE

The purpose of authorizing the Board of Directors to implement a future name change is to allow Laika to reclaim its name as Sputnik, Inc. after the sale of stock.

#### Resolution to Approve the Authorization for Name Change Proposal

The special resolution approving the foregoing is as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT the Articles of Incorporation of Sputnik, Inc. (the "Corporation") be amended, and all such further and other steps necessary or desirable under the laws of Nevada be taken in order to change the name of the Corporation to Sputnik Enterprises, Inc. upon the conclusion of a sale of stock of Laika, Inc. to AstroChimp, Inc.. Any officer, director or agent of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute and deliver all such documents and to do all such acts and things as he or she may determine to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing provisions of this special resolution, the execution of any such document or the doing of any such acts and things being conclusive evidence of such determination. Such amendment shall be effective on such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

#### RIGHTS OF DISSENTING SHAREHOLDERS

Under Nevada law you do have the right to dissent from the sale of stock (disposal of assets) and obtain cash payment for the "fair value" of your shares, as determined in accordance with the NRS. Below is a description of the steps you must take if you wish to exercise dissenters' rights with respect to the disposal of assets under NRS Sections 92A.300 to 92A.500, the Nevada dissenters' rights statute. The text of the statute is set forth in Exhibit B. This description is not intended to be complete. If you are considering exercising your dissenters' rights with respect to the disposal of assets, you should review NRS Sections 92A.300 to 92A.500 carefully, particularly the steps required to perfect dissenters' rights. Failure to take any one of the required steps may result in termination of your dissenters' rights under Nevada law. If you are considering dissenting, you should consult with your own legal advisor.

#### To exercise your dissenter's rights, you must:

- before the effective date of the sale of stock, deliver written notice to Sputnik, Inc. c/o Corporate Secretary, 650 5<sup>th</sup> Street, Suite 303, San Francisco, CA 94107, stating that you intend to demand payment for your shares if the sale of stock is completed; and
- in the event the Company was accepting proxies, not vote your shares in favor of the sale of stock, either by proxy or in person. If you satisfy these conditions, we will send you a written dissenter's notice within 10 days after the disposal is effective.

This dissenter's notice will:

- specify where you should send your payment demand and where and when you must deposit your stock certificates, if any;
- inform holders of uncertificated shares to what extend the transfer of their shares will be restricted after their payment demand is received.
- supply a form of payment demand that includes a required certification that the dissenting shareholder acquired beneficial ownership of the shares prior to the date the disposal of assets was first publicly announced;
- set a date by when we must receive the payment demand, which may not be less than 30 or more than 60 days after the date the dissenters' notice is delivered; and
- provide you a copy of Nevada's dissenters' rights statute.

After you have received a dissenter's notice, if you still wish to exercise your dissenters' rights, you must:

- certify whether you have acquired beneficial ownership of the shares before the date set forth in the dissenter's notice; and
- deposit your certificates, if any, in accordance with the terms of the dissenter's notice.

FAILURE TO DEMAND PAYMENT IN THE PROPER FORM OR DEPOSIT YOUR CERTIFICATES AS DESCRIBED IN THE DISSENTER'S NOTICE WILL TERMINATE YOUR RIGHT TO RECEIVE PAYMENT FOR YOUR SHARES PURSUANT THE NEVADA'S DISSENTERS' RIGHTS STATUTE. YOUR RIGHTS AS A STOCKHOLDER WILL CONTINUE UNTIL THOSE RIGHTS ARE CANCELLED OR MODIFIED BY THE COMPLETION OF THE DISPOSAL OF ASSETS.

Within 30 days after receiving your properly executed payment demand, the Company will pay you what we determine to be the fair value of your shares, plus accrued interest (computed from the effective date of the disposal of assets until the date of payment). The payment will be accompanied by:

- the Company's balance sheet as of the end of a fiscal year ended not more than 16 mouths before the date of payment, an income statement for that year, a statement of changes in stockholders' equity for that year, and the latest available interim financial statements, if any;
- an explanation of how we estimated the fair value of the shares and how the interest was calculated;
- information regarding your right to challenge the estimated fair value; and
- a copy of Nevada's dissenters' rights statute.

The Company may elect to withhold payment from you if you became the beneficial owner of the shares on or after the date set forth in the dissenter's notice. If we withhold payment, after the consummation of the disposal of assets, the Company will estimate the fair value of the shares, plus accrued interest, and offer to pay this amount to you until satisfaction of your demand. The offer will contain a statement of our estimate of the fair value, an explanation of how the interest was calculated, and a statement of dissenters' rights to demand payment under NRS Section 92A.480.

If you believe that the amount the Company pays in exchange for your dissenting shares is less than the fair value of your shares or that the interest is not correctly determined, you can demand payment of the difference between your estimate and the Company's. You must make such demand within 30 days after the Company has made or offered payment; otherwise, your right to challenge calculation of fair value terminates.

If there is still disagreement about the fair market value within 60 days after the Company receives your demand, the Company will petition the District Court of Clark County, Nevada to determine the fair value of the shares and the accrued interest. If the Company does not commence such legal action within the 60-day period, the Company will have to pay the amount demanded for all unsettled demands. All dissenters whose demands remain unsettled will be made parties to the proceeding, and are entitled to a judgment for either:

- the amount of the fair value of the shares, plus interest, in excess of the amount the Company paid; or
- the fair value, plus accrued interest, of the after-acquired shares for which we withheld payment.

The company will pay the costs and expenses of the court proceeding unless the court finds the dissenters acted arbitrarily, vexatious, or in bad faith; in such instance, the costs will be equitably distributed. Attorney's tees will be divided as the court considers equitable.

FAILURE TO FOLLOW THE STEPS REQUIRED BY NRS SECTIONS 92A.400 THROUGH 92A.480 FOR PERFECTING DISSENTERS' RIGHTS MAY RESULT IN THE LOSS OF SUCH RIGHTS. IF DISSENTERS' RIGHTS ARE NOT PERFECTED, YOU WILL BE ENTITLED TO RECEIVE THE CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SHARES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SALE OF STOCK. IN VIEW OF THE COMPLEXITY OF THE PROVISIONS OF NEVADA'S DISSENTERS' RIGHTS STATUTE, IF YOU ARE CONSIDERING OBJECTING TO THE DISPOSAL OF ASSETS YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN LEGAL ADVISOR.

#### ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company is subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and in accordance therewith files reports, proxy, and information statements, and other information with the SEC. Such reports, proxy, and information statements, and other information filed can be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at 100 F St. N.E., Washington, D.C. Copies of such materials can be obtained from the Public Reference Section of the SEC at 100 F St. N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 at prescribed rates. The SEC maintains a World Wide Web site that contains reports, proxy, and information statements, and other information filed through the SEC's Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval System. This Web site can be accessed at <a href="http://www.sec.gov">http://www.sec.gov</a>.

For additional information please contact David LaDuke at 415-355-9500.

#### **BOARD APPROVAL**

The content and the sending of this Proxy Statement have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

SPUTNIK, INC.

David LaDuke
David LaDuke
Chief Executive Officer

#### APPENDIX A - ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT

# CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF SPUTNIK, INC.

Sputnik, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada (the "Corporation"), and in accordance with the applicable provisions of Section 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS"):

FIRST: That the following resolutions were adopted by the Corporation's Board of Directors and the holders of a majority of the voting capital stock of the Corporation:

BE IT RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT the Articles of Incorporation of Sputnik, Inc. (the "Corporation") be amended, and all such further and other steps necessary or desirable under the laws of Nevada be taken in order to change the name of the Corporation be changed to Sputnik Enterprises, Inc. upon the conclusion of a sale of stock of Laika, Inc. to AstroChimp, Inc. Any officer, director or agent of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute and deliver all such documents and to do all such acts and things as he or she may determine to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing provisions of this special resolution, the execution of any such document or the doing of any such acts and things being conclusive evidence of such determination. Such amendment shall be effective on such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

**BE IT RESOLVED AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT** the Articles of Incorporation of Sputnik, Inc. (the "Corporation") be amended, and all such further and other steps necessary or desirable under the laws of Nevada be taken in order to add the following amendment to the third paragraph of the Articles of Incorporation:

In addition to the Common Stock, the aggregate number of shares which this Corporation will have authority to issue is an additional 10,000,000 shares which will be designated "Preferred Stock".

The shares of Preferred Stock may be issued in series, and shall have such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such designations, preferences and relative participating, optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such stock adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is hereby expressly vested with the authority to determine and fix in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuances of Preferred Stock the voting powers, designations, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of each such series to the full extent now or hereafter permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada.

Any officer, director or agent of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute and deliver all such documents and to do all such acts and things as he or she may determine to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing provisions of this special resolution, the execution of any such document or the doing of any such acts and things being conclusive evidence of such determination. Such amendment shall be effective on such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

SECOND: That the First paragraph of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

1. The name of the Corporation is: Sputnik Enterprises, Inc.

THIRD: That the Third paragraph of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, be amended to add the following:

In addition to the 50,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock, the aggregate number of shares which this Corporation will have authority to issue is an additional 10,000,000 shares, \$.001 par value which will be designated "Preferred Stock".

The shares of Preferred Stock may be issued in series, and shall have such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such designations, preferences and relative participating, optional or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as shall be stated and expressed in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such stock adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is hereby expressly vested with the authority to determine and fix in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuances of Preferred Stock the voting powers, designations, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restric-tions thereof, of each such series to the full extent now or hereafter permitted by the laws of the State of Nevada.

Any officer, director or agent of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute and deliver all such documents and to do all such acts and things as he or she may determine to be necessary or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing provisions of this special resolution, the execution of any such document or the doing of any such acts and things being conclusive evidence of such determination. Such amendment shall be effective on such date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

FOURTH: The foregoing Certificate of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation was adopted pursuant to NRS Section 78.390 by the Board of Directors of the Corporation by unanimous written consent dated December 8, 2007, and was adopted pursuant to NRS Section 78.320 by the holders of a majority of the Company's issued and outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote on the matter by written consent of such stockholders dated December 8, 2007. Therefore, the number of votes cast was sufficient for approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to be executed
by its duly authorized officer.

Dated:, 2007.	
	David LaDuke, President
	26

#### APPENDIX B - DISSENTERS RIGHTS (NEVADA STATUTES)

#### RIGHTS OF DISSENTING OWNERS

NRS 92A.300 Definitions. As used in NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 92A.305 to 92A.335, inclusive, have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.

NRS 92A.305 "Beneficial stockholder" defined. "Beneficial stockholder" means a person who is a beneficial owner of shares held in a voting trust or by a nominee as the stockholder of record.

NRS 92A.310 "Corporate action" defined. "Corporate action" means the action of a domestic corporation.

NRS 92A.315 "Dissenter" defined. "Dissenter" means a stockholder who is entitled to dissent from a domestic corporation's action under NRS 92A.380 and who exercises that right when and in the manner required by NRS 92A.400 to 92A.480, inclusive.

NRS 92A.320 "Fair value" defined. "Fair value," with respect to a dissenter's shares, means the value of the shares immediately before the effectuation of the corporate action to which he objects, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of the corporate action unless exclusion would be inequitable.

NRS 92A.325 "Stockholder" defined. "Stockholder" means a stockholder of record or a beneficial stockholder of a domestic corporation.

NRS 92A.330 "Stockholder of record" defined. "Stockholder of record" means the person in whose name shares are registered in the records of a domestic corporation or the beneficial owner of shares to the extent of the rights granted by a nominee's certificate on file with the domestic corporation.

NRS 92A.335 "Subject corporation" defined. "Subject corporation" means the domestic corporation which is the issuer of the shares held by a dissenter before the corporate action creating the dissenter's rights becomes effective or the surviving or acquiring entity of that issuer after the corporate action becomes effective.

NRS 92A.340 Computation of interest. Interest payable pursuant to NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive, must be computed from the effective date of the action until the date of payment, at the average rate currently paid by the entity on its principal bank loans or, if it has no bank loans, at a rate that is fair and equitable under all of the circumstances.

NRS 92A.350 Rights of dissenting partner of domestic limited partnership. A partnership agreement of a domestic limited partnership or, unless otherwise provided in the partnership agreement, an agreement of implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange, may provide that contractual rights with respect to the partnership interest of a dissenting general or limited partner of a domestic limited partnership are available for any class or group of partnership interests in connection with any implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange in which the domestic limited partnership is a constituent entity.

NRS 92A.360 Rights of dissenting member of domestic limited-liability company. The articles of organization or operating agreement of a domestic limited-liability company or, unless otherwise provided in the articles of organization or operating agreement, an agreement of implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange, may provide that contractual rights with respect to the interest of a dissenting member are available in connection with any implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange in which the domestic limited-liability company is a constituent entity.

NRS 92A.370 Rights of dissenting member of domestic nonprofit corporation.

Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, and unless otherwise provided in the articles or bylaws, any member of any constituent domestic nonprofit corporation who voted against the implementation of the Company's current business plan may, without prior notice, but within 30 days after the effective date of the implementation of the Company's current business plan, resign from membership and is thereby excused from all contractual obligations to the constituent or surviving corporations which did not occur before his resignation and is thereby entitled to those rights, if any, which would have existed if there had been no implementation of the Company's current business plan and the membership had been terminated or the member had been expelled.

Unless otherwise provided in its articles of incorporation or bylaws, no member of a domestic nonprofit corporation, including, but not limited to, a cooperative corporation, which supplies services described in chapter 704 of NRS to its members only, and no person who is a member of a domestic nonprofit corporation as a condition of or by reason of the ownership of an interest in real property, may resign and dissent pursuant to subsection 1.

NRS 92A.380 Right of stockholder to dissent from certain corporate actions and to obtain payment for shares.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 92A.370 and 92A.390, any stockholder is entitled to dissent from, and obtain payment of the fair value of his shares in the event of any of the following corporate actions:

Consummation of a conversion or plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan to which the domestic corporation is a constituent entity:

If approval by the stockholders is required for the conversion or implementation of the Company's current business plan by NRS 92A.120 to 92A.160, inclusive, or the articles of incorporation, regardless of whether the stockholder is entitled to vote on the conversion or plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan; or

If the domestic corporation is a subsidiary and is merged with its parent pursuant to NRS 92A.180.

Consummation of a plan of exchange to which the domestic corporation is a constituent entity as the corporation whose subject owner's interests will be acquired, if his shares are to be acquired in the plan of exchange.

Any corporate action taken pursuant to a vote of the stockholders to the extent that the articles of incorporation, bylaws or a resolution of the board of directors provides that voting or nonvoting stockholders are entitled to dissent and obtain payment for their shares.

Any corporate action not described in paragraph (a), (b) or (c) that will result in the stockholder receiving money or scrip instead of fractional shares.

A stockholder who is entitled to dissent and obtain payment pursuant to NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive, may not challenge the corporate action creating his entitlement unless the action is unlawful or fraudulent with respect to him or the domestic corporation.

NRS 92A.390 Limitations on right of dissent: Stockholders of certain classes or series; action of stockholders not required for plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan.

There is no right of dissent with respect to a plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange in favor of stockholders of any class or series which, at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the meeting at which the plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange is to be acted on, were either listed on a national securities exchange, included in the national market system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or held by at least 2,000 stockholders of record, unless:

The articles of incorporation of the corporation issuing the shares provide otherwise; or

The holders of the class or series are required under the plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange to accept for the shares anything except:

Cash, owner's interests or owner's interests and cash in lieu of fractional owner's interests of:

- The surviving or acquiring entity; or
- Any other entity which, at the effective date of the plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan or exchange, were either listed on a national securities exchange, included in the national market system by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or held of record by a least 2,000 holders of owner's interests of record; or

A combination of cash and owner's interests of the kind described in sub-subparagraphs (I) and (II) of subparagraph (1) of paragraph (b).

There is no right of dissent for any holders of stock of the surviving domestic corporation if the plan of implementation of the Company's current business plan does not require action of the stockholders of the surviving domestic corporation under NRS 92A.130.

NRS 92A.400 Limitations on right of dissent: Assertion as to portions only to shares registered to stockholder; assertion by beneficial stockholder.

A stockholder of record may assert dissenter's rights as to fewer than all of the shares registered in his name only if he dissents with respect to all shares beneficially owned by any one person and notifies the subject corporation in writing of the name and address of each person on whose behalf he asserts dissenter's rights. The rights of a partial dissenter under this subsection are determined as if the shares as to which he dissents and his other shares were registered in the names of different stockholders.

A beneficial stockholder may assert dissenter's rights as to shares held on his behalf only if:

He submits to the subject corporation the written consent of the stockholder of record to the dissent not later than the time the beneficial stockholder asserts dissenter's rights; and

He does so with respect to all shares of which he is the beneficial stockholder or over which he has power to direct the vote.

NRS 92A.410 Notification of stockholders regarding right of dissent.

If a proposed corporate action creating dissenters' rights is submitted to a vote at a stockholders' meeting, the notice of the meeting must state that stockholders are or may be entitled to assert dissenters' rights under NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive, and be accompanied by a copy of those sections.

If the corporate action creating dissenters' rights is taken by written consent of the stockholders or without a vote of the stockholders, the domestic corporation shall notify in writing all stockholders entitled to assert dissenters' rights that the action was taken and send them the dissenter's notice described in NRS 92A.430.

NRS 92A.420 Prerequisites to demand for payment for shares.

If a proposed corporate action creating dissenters' rights is submitted to a vote at a stockholders' meeting, a stockholder who wishes to assert dissenter's rights:

Must deliver to the subject corporation, before the vote is taken, written notice of his intent to demand payment for his shares if the proposed action is effectuated; and

Must not vote his shares in favor of the proposed action.

If a proposed corporate action creating dissenters' rights is taken by written consent of the stockholders, a stockholder who wishes to assert dissenters' rights must not consent to or approve the proposed corporate action.

A stockholder who does not satisfy the requirements of subsection 1 or 2 and NRS 92A.400 is not entitled to payment for his shares under this chapter.

NRS 92A.430 Dissenter's notice: Delivery to stockholders entitled to assert rights; contents.

The subject corporation shall deliver a written dissenter's notice to all stockholders entitled to assert dissenters' rights.

The dissenter's notice must be sent no later than 10 days after the effectuation of the corporate action, and must:

State where the demand for payment must be sent and where and when certificates, if any, for shares must be deposited;

Inform the holders of shares not represented by certificates to what extent the transfer of the shares will be restricted after the demand for payment is received;

Supply a form for demanding payment that includes the date of the first announcement to the news media or to the stockholders of the terms of the proposed action and requires that the person asserting dissenter's rights certify whether or not he acquired beneficial ownership of the shares before that date;

Set a date by which the subject corporation must receive the demand for payment, which may not be less than 30 nor more than 60 days after the date the notice is delivered; and

Be accompanied by a copy of NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive.

NRS 92A.440 Demand for payment and deposit of certificates; retention of rights of stockholder.

A stockholder to whom a dissenter's notice is sent must:

Demand payment;

Certify whether he or the beneficial owner on whose behalf he is dissenting, as the case may be, acquired beneficial ownership of the shares before the date required to be set forth in the dissenter's notice for this certification; and

Deposit his certificates, if any, in accordance with the terms of the notice.

The stockholder who demands payment and deposits his certificates, if any, before the proposed corporate action is taken retains all other rights of a stockholder until those rights are cancelled or modified by the taking of the proposed corporate action.

The stockholder who does not demand payment or deposit his certificates where required, each by the date set forth in the dissenter's notice, is not entitled to payment for his shares under this chapter.

NRS 92A.450 Uncertificated shares: Authority to restrict transfer after demand for payment; retention of rights of stockholder.

The subject corporation may restrict the transfer of shares not represented by a certificate from the date the demand for their payment is received.

The person for whom dissenter's rights are asserted as to shares not represented by a certificate retains all other rights of a stockholder until those rights are cancelled or modified by the taking of the proposed corporate action.

NRS 92A.460 Payment for shares: General requirements.

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 92A.470, within 30 days after receipt of a demand for payment, the subject corporation shall pay each dissenter who complied with NRS 92A.440 the amount the subject corporation estimates to be the fair value of his shares, plus accrued interest. The obligation of the subject corporation under this subsection may be enforced by the district court:

Of the county where the corporation's registered office is located; or

At the election of any dissenter residing or having its registered office in this State, of the county where the dissenter resides or has its registered office. The court shall dispose of the complaint promptly.

The payment must be accompanied by:

The subject corporation's balance sheet as of the end of a fiscal year ending not more than 16 months before the date of payment, a statement of income for that year, a statement of changes in the stockholders' equity for that year and the latest available interim financial statements, if any;

A statement of the subject corporation's estimate of the fair value of the shares;

An explanation of how the interest was calculated;

A statement of the dissenter's rights to demand payment under NRS 92A.480; and

A copy of NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive.

NRS 92A.470 Payment for shares: Shares acquired on or after date of dissenter's notice.

A subject corporation may elect to withhold payment from a dissenter unless he was the beneficial owner of the shares before the date set forth in the dissenter's notice as the date of the first announcement to the news media or to the stockholders of the terms of the proposed action.

To the extent the subject corporation elects to withhold payment, after taking the proposed action, it shall estimate the fair value of the shares, plus accrued interest, and shall offer to pay this amount to each dissenter who agrees to accept it in full satisfaction of his demand. The subject corporation shall send with its offer a statement of its estimate of the fair value of the shares, an explanation of how the interest was calculated, and a statement of the dissenters' right to demand payment pursuant to NRS 92A.480.

NRS 92A.480 Dissenter's estimate of fair value: Notification of subject corporation; demand for payment of estimate.

A dissenter may notify the subject corporation in writing of his own estimate of the fair value of his shares and the amount of interest due, and demand payment of his estimate, less any payment pursuant to NRS 92A.460, or reject the offer pursuant to NRS 92A.470 and demand payment of the fair value of his shares and interest due, if he believes that the amount paid pursuant to NRS 92A.460 or offered pursuant to NRS 92A.470 is less than the fair value of his shares or that the interest due is incorrectly calculated.

A dissenter waives his right to demand payment pursuant to this section unless he notifies the subject corporation of his demand in writing within 30 days after the subject corporation made or offered payment for his shares.

NRS 92A.490 Legal proceeding to determine fair value: Duties of subject corporation; powers of court; rights of dissenter.

If a demand for payment remains unsettled, the subject corporation shall commence a proceeding within 60 days after receiving the demand and petition the court to determine the fair value of the shares and accrued interest. If the subject corporation does not commence the proceeding within the 60-day period, it shall pay each dissenter whose demand remains unsettled the amount demanded.

A subject corporation shall commence the proceeding in the district court of the county where its registered office is located. If the subject corporation is a foreign entity without a resident agent in the State, it shall commence the proceeding in the county where the registered office of the domestic corporation merged with or whose shares were acquired by the foreign entity was located.

The subject corporation shall make all dissenters, whether or not residents of Nevada, whose demands remain unsettled, parties to the proceeding as in an action against their shares. All parties must be served with a copy of the petition. Nonresidents may be served by registered or certified mail or by publication as provided by law.

The jurisdiction of the court in which the proceeding is commenced under subsection 2 is plenary and exclusive. The court may appoint one or more persons as appraisers to receive evidence and recommend a decision on the question of fair value. The appraisers have the powers described in the order appointing them, or any amendment thereto. The dissenters are entitled to the same discovery rights as parties in other civil proceedings.

Each dissenter who is made a party to the proceeding is entitled to a judgment:

For the amount, if any, by which the court finds the fair value of his shares, plus interest, exceeds the amount paid by the subject corporation; or

For the fair value, plus accrued interest, of his after-acquired shares for which the subject corporation elected to withhold payment pursuant to NRS 92A.470.

NRS 92A.500 Legal proceeding to determine fair value: Assessment of costs and fees.

The court in a proceeding to determine fair value shall determine all of the costs of the proceeding, including the reasonable compensation and expenses of any appraisers appointed by the court. The court shall assess the costs against the subject corporation, except that the court may assess costs against all or some of the dissenters, in amounts the court finds equitable, to the extent the court finds the dissenters acted arbitrarily, vexatiously or not in good faith in demanding payment.

The court may also assess the fees and expenses of the counsel and experts for the respective parties, in amounts the court finds equitable:

Against the subject corporation and in favor of all dissenters if the court finds the subject corporation did not substantially comply with the requirements of NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive; or

Against either the subject corporation or a dissenter in favor of any other party, if the court finds that the party against whom the fees and expenses are assessed acted arbitrarily, vexatiously or not in good faith with respect to the rights provided by NRS 92A.300 to 92A.500, inclusive.

If the court finds that the services of counsel for any dissenter were of substantial benefit to other dissenters similarly situated, and that the fees for those services should not be assessed against the subject corporation, the court may award to those counsel reasonable fees to be paid out of the amounts awarded to the dissenters who were benefited.

In a proceeding commenced pursuant to NRS 92A.460, the court may assess the costs against the subject corporation, except that the court may assess costs against all or some of the dissenters who are parties to the proceeding, in amounts the court finds equitable, to the extent the court finds that such parties did not act in good faith in instituting the proceeding.

This section does not preclude any party in a proceeding commenced pursuant to NRS 92A.460 or 92A.490 from applying the provisions of N.R.C.P. 68 or NRS 17.115.

## APPENDIX C

## STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 8th day of December, 2007, by and between **Sputnik**, **Inc.**, a **Nevada corporation** ("Seller") and **AstroChimp**, **Inc.**, a **Nevada corporation** ("Purchaser") with regard certain capital stock of **Laika**, **Inc.**, a Nevada corporation (the "Corporation").

WHEREAS, the Seller is the record owner and holder of certain issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation which is the subject of this Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Seller is willing to sell 15,000,000 shares of the Corporation's common stock (the "Shares") for an aggregate sum of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) the "Purchase Price"); and

WHEREAS, the Purchaser desires to purchase said Stock, and the Seller desires to sell said Stock, upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth;

*NOW, THEREFORE*, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, and in order to consummate the purchase and the sale of the Stock, the parties hereby agreed as follows:

- PURCHASE OF SALE: Subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, at the closing of the transaction which is the subject of this Agreement, the Seller shall sell, convey, transfer and deliver to the Purchaser certificates representing such Stock, and the Purchaser shall purchase from the Seller the Stock in consideration of the Purchase Price set forth in this Agreement.
- 1. The Certificates representing the Stock shall be duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by appropriate stock transfer powers duly executed in blank, in either case with signatures guaranteed in the customary fashion, and shall have all the necessary documentary transfer tax stamps affixed thereto at the expense of the Seller. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement ("Closing"), shall be held on the earliest date practicable.
- 2. AMOUNTS *AND PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE*. The total consideration and method of payment thereof are fully set out in "Exhibit A" are attached and hereby incorporated by reference.
- 3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER. Seller hereby warrants and represents:
  - Organization and Standing. Corporation is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada and has the corporate power and authority to carry on its business as it is now being conducted.
  - (b) Restrictions on Stock.
    - The Seller is not a party to any agreement, written or oral, creating rights in respect to this Stock in any third person or relating to the voting of said Stock;

- Seller is the lawful owner of the Stock, free and clear of all security interests, liens, encumbrances, equities and other charges; and
- There are no existing warrants, options, stock purchase agreements, redemption agreements, restrictions of any nature, calls or rights to subscribe of any character relating to the Stock, nor are there any securities convertible into such Stock.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER. Purchaser hereby represents and warrants that of a registration statement by AstroChimp of a rights offering to current shareholders of Sputnik other than David LaDuke giving them the opportunity to purchase the same number of shares of common stock of AstroChimp as they currently own in Sputnik for consideration not to exceed par value of \$.001 or such lesser amount as permitted under Nevada law, such registration statement to be filed no later than 120 days following the closing of the sale of Laika stock to Astrochimp. No shareholder of Sputnik may purchase stock in this offering unless they agree not to resell securities acquired for a period of two years.

## 5. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

- Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the attached Exhibit A and any written amendments to this Agreement executed by the parties) constitutes the entire Agreement and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral and written, between the parties with regard to the Stock and this Agreement.
- (b) Sections and Other Headings. The section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
- Governing Law. This agreement and all transactions contemplated in this Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of Nevada. The parties herein waive trial by jury and agree to submit to the personal jurisdiction and venue of a court of subject matter jurisdiction located in the State of Nevada. In the event that litigation results from or arises out of this Agreement or the performance thereof, the parties agree to reimburse the prevailing party's reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and all other expenses, whether or not taxable by the court as costs, in addition to any other relief to which the prevailing party may be entitled.

IN WIT	TNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by each of the individual parties on the date first above written.
AGREI	ED TO:
AstroC	Thimp, Inc. ("Purchaser")
By:	
Da	vid LaDuke, President
Sputnil	k, Inc. ("Seller")
By:	
Da	avid LaDuke, President
	EXHIBIT A
	Amount and Payment of Purchase Price
	Consideration. As total consideration for the purchase and sale of the Shares which are the subject of this Agreement, the
(1)	Purchaser shall pay the Seller the sum of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000), such total consideration referred to in this Agreement as the "Purchase Price."
(2)	Payment. The Purchase Price shall be paid the by a reduction in indebtedness of Seller to David LaDuke in the amount of \$5,000.
	37

## WILLIAMS LAW GROUP, P.A.

2503 W. Gardner Ct. Tampa FL 33611 Phone: 813-831-9348

Fax: 813-832-5284

December 9, 2007

Mr. Matthew Crispino
United States Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance
Washington, D.C. 20549-0408

Re: Sputnik, Inc.
Schedule 14C
Amendment No. 2.
File No. 0-52366

Dear Mr. Crispino:

On behalf of Sputnik, Inc., attached Amendment No. 2 to the above information statement.

The transaction has been restructured to eliminate a spin-off in response to the staff's concerns. As such, the provisions of Staff Legal Bulletin 4 are not applicable to the Proposals in the amended Schedule 14C.

We note the Schedule now contains:

A complete description of the terms and conditions of the sale of stock of Laika to AstroChimp, an affiliate An extensive discussion of why other alternatives were considered and rejected.

An extensive review of Nevada law concerning related party transactions demonstrating that the current transaction as proposed fully complies with all applicable provisions of Nevada law.

We believe that we have adequately addressed all concerns and comments.

Management of Sputnik has requested that, on behalf of the shareholders of Sputnik who management is trying to protect through the Proposals, we transmit a plea that the staff please review this filing as quickly as possible so that management has the opportunity to implement its business plan before the company has to cease operations.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

/s/ MICHAEL T. WILLIAMS, ESQ

Michael T. Williams, Esq.